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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 1 

FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON 2 

MEDFORD DIVISION 3 

Case  4 

David White, Pro Se P1  5 

18965 NW Illahe St,              CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT 6 

Portland OR.                  $1 million 7 

dave@salmonprotectiondevice.com    8 

503-608-7611 COMPLAINT FOR     9 

DECLARATORY 10 

JUDGEMENT, DAMAGES  11 

AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF 12 

JURY REQUESTED 13 

     14 

vs.  15 

Defendant 1. (D1) 16 

Susana Dietrich  17 

601 Jackpine Dr,  18 

Grants Pass, OR 97526 19 

2140 Bobcat Ave SW 20 

Albany, OR 97321-4872 21 

mitt@dietrichconst.com  22 

541-974-3251 23 

 24 

Defendant 2. (D2) 25 

Mary Lou Soscia in her 26 

Personal capacity as President of  27 

Water Watch of Oregon 28 

 29 

Defendant 3 (D3) 30 

Bryan Sohlin in his Personal capacity as Vice 31 

President of Water Watch of Oregon 32 

 33 

Defendant 4 (D4) 34 

Neil Brandt in his personal capacity as  35 

Executive Director of  36 

Water Watch of Oregon 37 

503-295-4039x 101 38 

neil@waterwatch.org 39 
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 1 

Melanie Klym (D5) 2 

River Design Group 3 

311 SW Jefferson Avenue 4 

Corvallis, Oregon 97333 5 

Phone: 541.738.2920 6 

 info@riverdesigngroup.com 7 

Legal Counsel for Water Watch defendants 8 

Kaitlin Lovell 9 

Attorney-Advisor 10 

213 SW Ash St., Suite 208  11 

Portland, OR 97204 12 

213 SW Ash St., Suite 208  13 

Portland, OR 97204 14 

(503) 295-4039 15 

info@waterwatch.org 16 

 17 

Janette Brimmer 18 

jbrimmer@earthjustice.org 19 

Molly Tack-Hooper 20 

mtackhooper@earthjustice.org 21 

 22 

 23 

        Class action members are local stakeholders who have been  24 

 25 

intimated and harassed (29 CFR § 1606.8 (1)) by Defendants from Water  26 

 27 

Watch. Therefore, the identities of the class action members will be  28 

 29 

withheld until a trial commences. 30 

 31 

Note to the Court. Your Honor please care about the environment like  32 

 33 

plaintiff and class action members do. Defendants should be in jail. The  34 

 35 

dam was illegally removed. 36 

 37 

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES 38 

 39 
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1)18 USC 3 accessory after the fact…………………………………17 1 

2) 16 USCA § 1532(19);………………………………………………3 2 

3) Scott, J. M. & Karl, J. (1999) “Local and national protection of 3 

endangered species: An assessment,” Environmental Science & Policy, 2, 4 

pp. 43-59. 5 

4) 18 U.S. Code § 41 - Hunting, fishing, trapping; disturbance or injury on 6 

wildlife refuges…………………………………………………………………..3 7 

5) The Endangered Species Act of 1973, …………………………..4 8 

https://www.fws.gov/laws/endangered-species-act/section-11. 9 

 10 

6) 18 U.S.C. § 1001 False Statements, Concealment………………17 11 

 12 

7) 18 U.S.C. 1621 Perjury………………………………………………17 13 

 14 

8) 29 CFR § 1606.8 (1) – Harassment has the purpose or effect of creating 15 

an intimidating, hostile or offensive working environment……………….17 16 

 17 

 18 

9) 33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq. (1972) Clean water act Section 404…….14, 17, 19 

29 20 

 21 

 22 

10) 28 U.S. Code § 4101…………………………………………………..3 23 

 24 

11) 22–451 June 28th, 2024 Loper Bright Enterprises v. Raimondo and 25 

Relentless, Inc. v. Department of Commerce. 26 

https://www.supremecourt.gov/opinions/23pdf/22-451_7m58.pdf 27 

 28 

12) FRCP 3 (4)………………………………………………………………..3 29 

 30 

13) 42 U.S.C. §7401 1970 Clean Air Act 31 

 32 

14) Pagtalunan v. Galaza, 291 F.3d 639, 642 (9th Cir. 2002):  Pagtalunan  33 

was Pro Se and made numerous mistakes in filing his complaint resulting  34 

in the case being dismissed. However, upon appeal, the higher Court  35 

ruled that the lower Court was in error because they did not give allowance 36 

for Pagtalunan’s lack of legal 37 

training……………………………………………3 38 

 39 

Plaintiff also has lack of legal training and respectfully requests the same  40 
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 1 

allowance the higher court said Pagtalunan should have received. 2 

15) 33 CFR Part 329 - PART 329—DEFINITION OF NAVIGABLE 3 

WATERS OF THE UNITED STATES 4 

 5 

16) 6 

https://usace.contentdm.oclc.org/utils/getfile/collection/p16021coll7/id/20097 

9 Nationwide permits for habitat restoration. 8 

 9 

17) https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2021/01/13/2021-10 

00102/reissuance-and-modification-of-nationwide-permits Reissuance and 11 

modification of Nation Wide permits for habitat restoration. 12 

 13 

                                           JURISDICTION 14 

 15 

Jurisdiction 16 

 17 

Basis for Jurisdiction 18 

 19 

 Basis for Jurisdiction is a federal environmental question. The  20 

 21 

Pomeroy Dam is on the Illinois River which flows from Oregon to California  22 

then to the ocean. Therefore, this case is Federal Jurisdiction. An  23 

 24 

Environmental disaster in the Pomeroy Dam removal has resulted from  25 

 26 

Water Watch D2 and D3 (D23) willful destruction of the environment in  27 

 28 

violation of known stipulations and restrictions of the Wild and Scenic  29 

 30 

Rivers Act and Clean Water Act, Section 404. These are in clear violation  31 

 32 

of the Federal Clean Air and Federal Clean Water Acts of the US  33 

 34 

Congress.  35 

 36 

 This also includes violations of killing fish including endangered Salmon  37 

 38 

without permits. Additional violations are: 18 USC 3, 16 USCA § 1532, 18  39 

 40 



5 
 

U.S. Code § 41, Item 3 below, The Endangered Species Act of 1973, 18  1 

 2 

U.S.C. § 1001, 18 U.S.C. 621, 18 USC 3, 29 CFR § 1606.8, 28 U.S. Code  3 

 4 

§ 4101, 33 U.S.C. §1251, 29 CFR § 1606.8, 28 U.S. Code § 4101, 18  5 

 6 

U.S.C. 1743 and FRCP. This Court has jurisdiction, over the subject matter  7 

of this complaint, because the illegal and unlawful actions of D23 are  8 

 9 

violating Federal Law, to include (Wild and Scenic Rivers Act, PL 90-542),  10 

 11 

(Clean Water Act), and (Commerce Clause of the Constitution).  D1  12 

 13 

Is complicit in these statute violations by providing WW with its contract for  14 

dam removal.   15 

 16 

Additionally, This Court has jurisdiction, over the subject  17 
 18 

matter of this complaint, because of its geographical proximity to the  19 

 20 

massive environmental damage in the Illinois River basin.  21 

 22 

Plaintiff presents this Complaint respectfully reminding the Court to  23 

 24 

convene this case as an article III, of the U.S. Constitution Court case, per  25 

 26 

the recent US Supreme  27 

 28 

Court ruling in 11) 2024 Loper Bright Enterprises v. Raimondo and  29 

 30 

Relentless, Inc. v. Department of Commerce above. Article III, Section 2 of  31 

the U. S. Constitution stipulates that “The Judicial Power shall  32 

 33 

extend to all cases in law and equity, arising under this constitution, the  34 

 35 

laws of the United States and Treaties, which will be made under the  36 

 37 

Authority;  38 

 39 

- to all cases affecting ambassadors, other public Ministers and  40 
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 1 

Counsels, to controversies to which the United States shall be a party; 2 

 3 

- to controversies between two or more states, … between citizens of  4 

 5 

different states, between a state or the citizens thereof. 6 

 7 

First Page, second paragraph, Held: The Administrative Procedure Act  8 

 9 

requires courts to exercise their independent judgment in deciding whether  10 

 11 

an agency has acted within its statutory authority, and courts may not defer  12 

 13 

to an agency interpretation of the law simply because a statute is  14 

 15 

ambiguous; Chevron is overruled. Pp. 7–35.  16 

 17 

(https://www.foleyhoag.com/news-and-insights/publications/alerts-and-18 

updates/2024/july/chevrons-demise-and-what-it-means-for-healthcare-and-19 

life-sciences-companies/ )  20 

 21 

Therefore, agencies like the Army Corp of Engineers are no longer  22 

 23 

permitted to cherry pick data to match their administrative agenda.  For  24 

 25 

example, about 80% of Pomeroy Dam area residents were strongly  26 

 27 

 28 

opposed to the dam being removed, however, they were bullied into  29 

 30 

signing agreements by threat of legal complaints.  31 

 32 

 33 

Exhibit 1 contains affidavits of local residents who were bullied. To prevent  34 

further harassment by Defendants an emergency hearing is requested to  35 

 36 

Initiate the signing of an injunction against the defendants to stop their  37 

 38 

futher environmental damage 39 

 40 
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                                               VENUE 1 

 2 

Venue is proper in this Court because the location of the Court is in  3 

 4 

the same geographical location as the Illegal act's that are NOW being  5 

 6 

perpetrated.  The Court’s location is close to the environmental damage  7 

 8 

incurred and ongoing, allowing for easy visual  9 

 10 

inspection.                                           11 

 12 

                                              STANDING 13 

 14 

The Illinois River's right to a wild and scenic condition is actively being  15 

 16 

violated by D23 and D1 the D23’s contractor, and therefore the Public  17 

 18 

(Plaintiff and Class action members) have a legal right to speak on behalf  19 

 20 

of the Illinois River. In addition, the public's right to enjoyment of that  21 

 22 

condition as mandated by Congress has forever been taken away.  23 

 24 

Therefore, Plaintiffs have standing. Additionally, this is a class action  25 

 26 

complaint with class action members residing in the Illinois Basin. 27 

. 28 

 29 

 30 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  31 

 32 

I. INTRODUCTION.................................................................. 8  33 

II. BACKGROUND................................................................... 8  34 

III. ARGUMENT....................................................................... 12 35 

IV. CONCLUSION.................................................................. 20 36 

V. PRAYER FOR RELIEF....................................................... 26 37 

 38 

 39 

 40 
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                                      INTRODUCTION...  1 

 2 

Plaintiff writes this Pleading to the Medford Federal Court with full  3 

 4 

knowledge of Defendants’ willful violation of federal law, no permits,  5 

 6 

bullying local residence into signing a false agreement and being untruthful  7 

in their Army Corps of Engineers Joint Application. Their Joint Application  8 

 9 

declared that the Illinois River was not a “Wild and Scenic River” and not  10 

 11 

navigable in Section 8 of their Joint application below. They must check  12 

 13 

Yes, on questions 2 and 3 in section8 of the Joint Application. This is a  14 

 15 

critical habitat for spawning salmon and a wild and scenic river by the legal  16 

definition below. Choosing yes then would have required Section 404 or  17 

 18 

408 permits, which were withdrawn March 12, 2024. 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 
 24 

This flawed Joint Application is Exhibit 2. 25 

 26 

The Illinois River fits all three definitions in the link below the Illinois River  27 

 28 
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fits all three. By 15) above the Illinois River is; 1 

 2 

An Introduction to Wild & Scenic Rivers  3 

https://www.rivers.gov/rivers/rivers/sites/rivers/files/2022-06/wsr-primer.pdf 4 

 5 

Bottom of page 2 and repeated top of page 3 6 

 7 

In recent years, a large number of designations have resulted from a little- 8 

 9 

noticed provision of the Act.  This is Section 5(d)(1) which requires that, “In  10 

all planning for the use and development of water and related land  11 

 12 

resources, consideration shall be given by all Federal agencies involved to  13 

potential national wild, scenic and recreational river areas, and all river  14 

 15 

basin and project plan reports submitted to the Congress shall consider  16 

 17 

and discuss any such potentials.”  The Bureau of Land Management (BLM)  18 

and the U.S. Forest Service (USFS) have identified a large number of  19 

 20 

rivers eligible for the National System while conducting their  21 

 22 

comprehensive land management planning processes.  These have  23 

 24 

resulted in multiple designations in several states—Oregon (40), Michigan  25 

 26 

(14) and Arkansas (8).  The National Park Service (NPS) also has identified  27 

eligible rivers in National Park System units.  28 

 29 

Top of page 4. 30 

 31 

“Wild” river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are free of  32 

 33 

impoundments and generally inaccessible except by trail, with watersheds  34 

 35 

or shorelines essentially primitive and waters unpolluted.  These represent  36 

 37 

vestiges of primitive America.  38 

 39 

“Scenic” river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are free of  40 
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 1 

impoundments, with shorelines or watersheds still largely primitive and  2 

 3 

shorelines largely undeveloped, but accessible in places by roads.  4 

 5 

“Recreational” river areas – Those rivers or sections of rivers that are  6 

 7 

readily accessible by road or railroad, that may have some development  8 

 9 

along their shorelines, and that may have undergone some impoundment  10 

 11 

or diversion in the past. 12 

 13 

33 CFR Part 329 - PART 329—DEFINITION OF NAVIGABLE WATERS  14 

OF THE UNITED STATES § 329.4 General definition. 15 

 16 

Navigable waters of the United States are those waters that are subject to  17 

 18 

the ebb and flow of the tide and/or are presently used, or have been used  19 

 20 

in the past, or may be susceptible for use to transport interstate or foreign  21 

 22 

commerce. A determination of navigability, once made, applies laterally  23 

 24 

over the entire surface of the waterbody, and is not extinguished by later  25 

 26 

actions or events which impede or destroy navigable capacity. 27 

 28 

Defendants have claimed that they possess a national permit and that is  29 

 30 

why their section 404 and 408 permits were withdrawn on March 12, 2024.  31 

https://www.nwp.usace.army.mil/Portals/24/docs/regulatory/nationwide/20232 

30720%202021_Nationwide_Permit_User_Guide%20NWP%20(All%20NW33 

PS).pdf 34 

https://www.nwp.usace.army.mil/Portals/24/docs/regulatory/nationwide/20235 

20211%202021%20Regional%20Permit%20Conditions.pdf 36 

 37 

Neither the national nor regional permit is for dam removal. They are for  38 

 39 

habitat restoration only. 40 
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 1 

This is Water Watch Legal Counsel from Earth Justice attempt to bully  2 

 3 

Dave White of salmonprotectiondevice.com 4 

 5 

 6 
 7 

Molly Tack-Hooper<mtackhooper@earthjustice.org> 8 

 9 

To: 10 

You 11 

 12 

Cc: 13 

Janette Brimmer; 14 

 15 

noahrobinson2012@gmail.com 16 

 17 

Fri 8/16/2024 10:37 AM 18 

Mr. White: 19 

 20 

I understand that you have continued to contact Mr. McCarthy to threaten 21 

litigation since receiving my email yesterday informing you that Earthjustice 22 

represents WaterWatch of Oregon for the Pomeroy Dam removal and 23 

instructing you to direct your communications about that matter to me and 24 

my colleague instead of to our client. Once again: do not contact Mr. 25 

McCarthy or anyone else at WaterWatch about this matter. They are 26 

represented parties, and you need to go through their counsel (me and Ms. 27 

Brimmer). 28 
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 1 

Furthermore, it appears from your various communications that you may be 2 

under the mistaken impression that the Pomeroy Dam removal is in some 3 

way connected with the removal of dams on the Klamath River, or that 4 

WaterWatch of Oregon is involved with the Klamath dam removal project. 5 

Neither is correct. The Pomeroy Dam removal has nothing to do with the 6 

Klamath. Please stop contacting us and our clients about the Klamath dam 7 

removal. 8 

 9 

With respect to your repeated demands for permits and your baseless 10 

allegations that the Pomeroy project is not properly permitted, we are under 11 

no obligation to explain the permitting for this project to you or supply you 12 

with copies of documents. You are of course free to file public records 13 

requests with the respective agencies involved. 14 

 15 

Good luck with all your endeavors. 16 

 17 

Sincerely, 18 

 19 

  20 

 21 

Molly Tack-Hooper 22 

 23 

Supervising Senior Attorney, Northwest Office 24 

 25 

Earthjustice 26 

 27 

(she/they) 28 

 29 

810 3rd Ave., #610 30 

 31 

Seattle, WA 98104 32 

 33 

mtackhooper@earthjustice.org 34 

 35 

This bullying falls under 8) 29 CFR § 1606.8 (1) – Harassment. 36 

 37 

This is Plaintiff response. 38 

 39 

“Since there is no litigation filed I can contact anyone I want. 40 



13 
 

 1 

Just so you know, these are facts. 2 

1.   Their joint application is not legal because they did not chose wild  3 
 4 

and scenic river which the Illinois is by legal definition. 5 

 6 

a.   They also did not check navigable which it is by legal 7 
 8 

 definition. Either of these checked they would have had to get  9 
 10 

a section 404 or 408 which was withdrawn March 12th 2024. 11 
 12 
 13 

2.   Their so-called national permit NWP-2023-591 covers habitat  14 
 15 

restoration only not dam removal. 16 

 17 

3.   Your clients have been bullying the homeowners and the Q Bar X  18 
 19 

ranch. There will be sworn affidavits of local residents to this. 20 

 21 

4.   Your clients have a DEQ permit for turbidity. However, that says your  22 

client must have which they don’t have. An excerpt is below. 23 

 24 

5.   Your client so far has violated these federal laws: 16 USCA §  25 
 26 

1532(19), 18 U.S. Code § 41, The Endangered Species Act of 1973, 27 

…………………………..4 28 
 29 

https://www.fws.gov/laws/endangered-species-act/section-11, 29  30 
 31 

CFR § 1606.8 (1) – Harassment, 33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq. (1972)  32 
 33 

Clean water act Section 404 and more. 34 

  35 

“May 3, 2024 Melanie Klym River Design Group, Inc. 311 SW Jefferson  36 
 37 

Way Corvallis, OR 97333 RE: 401 Water Quality Certification Approval for  38 
 39 

2023-591, Pomeroy Dam Removal on Illinois River. The US Army Corps of 40 

Engineers (USACE) has determined that your project will be authorized  41 
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 1 

under Nationwide Permit (NWP) category #27. “ 2 

 3 

“As described in the application package received and reviewed by the  4 

 5 

Oregon Department of  6 

 7 

Environmental Quality (DEQ), the project qualifies for the expedited 401  8 

 9 

Water Quality Certification (WQC), subject to the conditions outlined below.  10 

If you cannot meet all conditions of this 401 WQC, you may apply for a  11 

 12 

standard individual certification. A standard individual certification will  13 

 14 

require additional information, a public notice, and a higher review fee.  15 

 16 

Certification Decision: Based on information provided by the USACE and  17 

 18 

the Applicant, DEQ has determined that implementation eligible activities  19 

 20 

under the proposed NWP will be consistent with water quality requirements  21 

including applicable provisions of Sections 301, 302, 303, 306, and 307 of  22 

 23 

the federal Clean Water Act, state water quality standards set forth in  24 

 25 

Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 340 Division 41, and other  26 

 27 

appropriate requirements of state law, provided the following conditions are  28 

incorporated into the federal permit and strictly adhered to by the Applicant.  29 

Duration of Certificate: This 401 WQC for impacts to waters, including  30 

 31 

dredge and fill activities, is valid for the duration of the USACE Section 404  32 

permit. A new 401 WQC must be requested with any modification of the  33 

 34 

USACE 404 permit.” 35 

 36 

The national or regional permits are for habitat restoration not Dam  37 

 38 

destruction. Please see items 16 and 17 in the TABLE OF AUTHORITIES  39 

 40 
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which describe this in the Corp documents. 1 

 2 

No Section 408 permit -- it was withdrawn March 12, 2024. 3 

  4 

 NWP-2023-591 permit is a nationwide permit. It only allows habitat  5 

 6 

restoration. NWP stands for Nation Wide Permit. 7 

 8 

Oregon State Lands Permit is 64909-RF. This does not grant permission to  9 

remove the dam. Only the Clean Water Act Section 404 or 408 can grant   10 

 11 

such permission. 12 

 13 

” 14 

 15 

Plaintiff filed a complaint with Corp of Engineers against Water watch. 16 

 17 
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 1 
There is no dam removal in section 27. https://saw-2 

reg.usace.army.mil/NWP2021/NWP-27.pdf 3 

 4 

May 3, 2024 Melanie Klym River Design Group, Inc. 311 SW Jefferson   5 
  6 

Way Corvallis, OR 97333 RE: 401 comment “Water Quality Certification  7 

 8 

Approval for 2023-591, Pomeroy Dam Removal on Illinois River the US  9 

 10 

Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) has determined that your project will be  11 

authorized under Nationwide Permit (NWP) category #27.” 12 

 13 

This is categorically false. No mention of dam removal in Section 27. 14 

 15 

BACKGROUND 16 

 17 

https://www.opb.org/article/2024/05/24/nearly-2-million-federal-money-18 

headed-to-oregon-dam-removal-fish-restoration/ 19 

 20 

“This project is a high priority dam,” says Jim McCarthy, southern Oregon  21 

 22 

program director for WaterWatch Oregon. “It does not have a fish ladder,  23 

 24 

so it blocks or impedes access to 100 miles of habitat for coho, Chinook,  25 

 26 

Pacific lamprey, cutthroat trout and steelhead.”” ““Water Watch of Oregon,  27 

 28 
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a Portland-based environmental nonprofit with an office in Ashland, will be  1 

 2 

in charge of removing the Illinois River’s Pomeroy dam.” 3 

 4 

 5 

The second paragraph is categorically untrue. A section of the dam is only  6 

 7 

about 2 feet in height and spawning salmon can easily jump it. Other fish  8 

 9 

can and do jump it as well. The fingerlings coming down the river will easily  10 

 11 

 12 

pass over with the strong spring runoff.   13 

 14 

 15 
Image 1 July 8th. However, water still flowing over the dam. A salmon 16 

going over the dam. 17 

 18 
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 1 
 2 

Image 2. Defendants illegally taking out the dam. 3 

 4 

The dead aquatic species below are violation of these federal laws for each 5 

dead fish or other. 6 

 7 

1)18 USC 3 accessory after the fact for D1 and D5. 8 

2) 16 USCA § 1532(19); 9 

3) Scott, J. M. & Karl, J. (1999) “Local and national protection of 10 

endangered species: An assessment,” Environmental Science & Policy, 2, 11 

pp. 43-59. 12 

4) 18 U.S. Code § 41 - Hunting, fishing, trapping; disturbance or injury on 13 

wildlife refuges 14 

5) The Endangered Species Act of 1973,  15 

https://www.fws.gov/laws/endangered-species-act/section-11. 16 

 17 

Three federal laws violated for each dead item. 4 years in Jail for each item 18 

times 3. 19 
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 1 
Image 3 a dead ? 2 

 3 
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 1 

 2 
Image 4 dead fish including endangered Salmon 3 

 4 

 5 
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 1 
Image 5 more dead fish. 2 

 3 

 4 
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\ 1 

 2 

Image 6 more dead fish. 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

Thus, from a scientific standpoint, there exists absolutely no scientific or  7 

 8 

other reason to remove the dam.  9 

 10 

 11 

Water Watch of Portland’s 2020 990 filing lists $831,130 income. Total  12 

 13 

Assets of $ 1,153,194. Therefore, a $1 million request in this complaint is  14 

 15 
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reasonable compensation to the plaintiff and local stakeholders who have  1 

 2 

suffered harassment. 3 

 4 

 5 

 6 

ARGUMENT 7 

 8 

The relatively simple task of dredging silt contained behind the dam to  9 

 10 

resolve the problem has been overlooked or ignored. Fish are dying from  11 

 12 

the turbidity.  13 

No permit means what D23 is doing breaks federal law, punishable by 10  14 

 15 

years in prison, 33 U.S.C. §1251 et seq. (1972) Clean water act. The  16 

 17 

Oregon DEQ 401 is only related to turbidity. It also requires you to have a  18 

 19 

Clean Water Section permit.   Consequently, Defendants must restore  20 

 21 

everything at the dam to its original condition and vacate. Your permit was  22 

 23 

withdrawn March12, 2024. The DEQ 401 permit is related only to turbidity  24 

 25 

maximums. It also requires that you need a section 404 permit which you  26 

 27 

do not have. Below is our Section 404 permit and Joint application applied  28 

 29 

for in January for salmonprotectiondevice.com. You must cease and desist  30 

your vandalism of public property and restore the dam to its original  31 

 32 

condition.  Should you persist in your vandalism, we have no choice but to  33 

 34 

file a complaint in Medford Federal Court asking for adjudication of federal  35 

 36 

law violations. Please refer questions to 503-608-7611. 37 

 38 

Defendants are pseudo-scientists (WW) with no appreciation of  39 

 40 
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the scientific method.  The first step in the scientific method is thorough  1 

 2 

literature search to include existing reports of previous quantitative testing  3 

 4 

and surveys as well as qualitative reports such as public hearings or focus  5 

 6 

Groups. However, Defendants did not perform this task and were  7 

 8 

untruthful in statements to the media and their permit applications. Plaintiff  9 

 10 

already has shown Defendants Joint application was false. This was their  11 

 12 

application to Army Corp of Engineers and Oregon DEQ Section 401. 13 

 14 

 “May 3, 2024 Melanie Klym River Design Group, Inc. 311 SW Jefferson  15 

 16 

Way Corvallis, OR 97333 RE: 401 Water Quality Certification Approval for  17 

 18 

2023-591, Pomeroy Dam Removal on Illinois River The US Army Corps of  19 

 20 

Engineers (USACE) has determined that your project will be authorized  21 

 22 

under Nationwide Permit (NWP) category #27. As described in the  23 

 24 

application package received and reviewed by the Oregon Department of  25 

 26 

Environmental Quality (DEQ), the project qualifies for the expedited 401  27 

 28 

Water Quality Certification (WQC), subject to the conditions outlined below.  29 

If you cannot meet all conditions of this 401 WQC, you may apply for a  30 

 31 

standard individual certification. A standard individual certification will  32 

 33 

require additional information, a public notice, and a higher review fee.  34 

 35 

Certification Decision: Based on information provided by the USACE and  36 

 37 

the Applicant, DEQ has determined that implementation eligible activities  38 

 39 

under the proposed NWP will be consistent with water quality requirements  40 
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including applicable provisions of Sections 301, 302, 303, 306, and 307 of  1 

 2 

the federal Clean Water Act, state water quality standards set forth in  3 

 4 

Oregon Administrative Rules Chapter 340 Division 41, and other  5 

 6 

appropriate requirements of state law, provided the following conditions are  7 

 8 

incorporated into the federal permit and strictly adhered to by the Applicant.  9 

Duration of Certificate: This 401 WQC for impacts to waters, including  10 

 11 

dredge and fill activities, is valid for the duration of the USACE Section 404  12 

permit. A new 401 WQC must be requested with any modification of the  13 

 14 

USACE 404 permit.” 15 

 16 

The national or regional permits are for habitat restoration not Dam  17 

 18 

destruction. Please see attachments which describe this in the Corp  19 

 20 

documents. 21 

 22 

D23 Section 408 permit was withdrawn March12, 2024. 23 

 24 

The decision to vandalize and destroy this incredibly valuable | 25 
 26 

public property was based entirely on ill-informed, and unscientific  27 

 28 

complaints of non-residents.  Defendants are proceeding with no regard  29 
 30 

whatsoever for the water-rights of downstream users, and the far less  31 
 32 

draconian remedies that would have respected the environmental  33 
 34 

rights of everybody involved, upstream and downstream, in  35 
 36 

accordance with the 7 environmental values of the Wild and Scenic  37 
 38 

Rivers Act.  39 

 40 
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This debacle stands as testimony of compliance with half-baked,  1 

 2 

emotion charged, “radical environmentalist” ideology, while  3 

 4 

completely ignoring sound principles of environmental science.  5 

 6 

This is 18 U.S.C. § 1001 False Statements, Concealment, 18 U.S.C. 1621  7 

 8 

Perjury and 29 CFR § 1606.8 (1). 9 

 10 

The electric power from all Oregon dams is desperately needed for the  11 

 12 

Northwest grid this Winter.  This action entails senseless destruction of a  13 

 14 

vital source of clean energy because power from all sources is projected to  15 

fall 900 megawatts short in 2024.  16 

 17 

Promotion of Electric Vehicles has exacerbated the situation.  In light of our  18 

looming power crisis removal of this vital source of clean, renewable  19 

 20 

energy can only aggravate the problem.  Removal of the Pomeroy dam  21 

 22 

amounts to corporate insanity.       23 

 24 

 25 

The table below, along with other critical information, was presented by a  26 

 27 

grid expert at an October 18, 2023 Cascade Policy Institute Conference.  28 

 29 

Note that for this Winter, 2024-2025 the Northwest electric grid is projected  30 

to fall 927 megawatts short of demand.  It is projected to be almost nine  31 

 32 

times as bad in 10 years. The grid expert said they are talking about  33 

 34 

activating virtual generators at homes to help make up the difference when  35 

needed. For example, a virtual generator is equipped to switch the smart  36 

 37 

meter on a home which is charging an electrical vehicle at night and drain  38 

 39 
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the Ev battery charge back into the grid.   1 

 2 

 3 
Also, anything that is done to reduce emissions of carbon dioxide  4 

 5 

takes 150 years to have an effect due to the phenomenon of residence  6 

 7 

time.   Believe it or not, It takes that long for existing Carbon Dioxide  8 

 9 

to dissipate, so Electric Vehicles have no effect whatsoever on any  10 

imagined ill-effects of current CO2 levels.  11 

 12 
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https://cctruth.org/residence_time.pdf 1 

 2 

 3 

Exhibit list 4 

Exhibit 1 contains affidavits of local residents who were bullied by 5 

defendants into assent for dam removal. To prevent further harassment 6 

(8) 29 CFR § 1606.8 (1)), the  7 

 8 

Sworn affidavits of local residents will be presented as exhibits at an 9 

emergency hearing. 10 

 11 

Exhibit 2 is D23 illegal Joint Application 12 

The file is over 80 pages so a link is provided instead. 13 

https://salmonprotectiondevice.com/joint_application_filed_with_state_lan14 

ds.pdf 15 

 16 

 17 

Exhibit 3 is D23 illegal agreement with residents not signed by an officer 18 

of D23. 19 

 20 

Exhibit 4 is residence time of Atmospheric Carbon dioxide. 21 

 22 

 23 

CONCLUSION 24 

 25 

D1, D23 killed fish including endangered Salmon without permits.  26 

 27 

D23 has broken numerous environmental laws which transfer to D1 by 18 28 

USC 3 accessory after the fact. 29 

 30 

Standing is inherent or built-in by the class action nature  31 

 32 

of this case.  Class Action members, residing only a few miles from  33 
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 1 

the Pomeroy Dam have legal standing on the basis of direct harm inflicted.  2 

Their life and property are now at risk by the return of surge flood waters  3 

 4 

that were endemic prior to installation of the dam. 5 

 6 

 Standing is also inherent by D23 violations of Federal Environmental law  7 

 8 

and the seven values articulated therein, reserved for every citizen of the  9 

 10 

United States and for the river itself.    11 

 12 

 13 

 14 

                                      PRAYER FOR RELIEF  15 

 16 

1. Plaintiff respectfully requests the Federal Court to acknowledge  17 

 18 

standing based on Federal Environmental laws broken with  19 

 20 

associated 7 Values denied to Plaintiff, class action members due to  21 

 22 

harms inflicted by D1, D23’ malfeasance. 23 

 24 

2. Plaintiff respectfully requests the Federal Court for strong  25 

 26 

adjudication of Defendants to the Federal Prosecutor for felony  27 

 28 

charges against them 29 

 30 

3. Plaintiff hereby respectfully requests the Court to issue a Writ of  31 

 32 

Mandamus charging Plaintiffs’ team with the task of  33 

 34 

restoring the Illinois river back to its Original Wild and Scenic  35 

 36 

condition with dams and fish ladders as mandated by Congress, and  37 
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 1 

grant Injunctive Relief to halt all further vandalism of the Pomeroy  2 

 3 

dam.   4 

 5 

4. Also, to issue a Summary Judgement because Defendants continue  6 

 7 

to ignore what they are legally required to do by the Army Corp of  8 

 9 

Engineers, and the federal Clean Water Act, Section 404.  The  10 

 11 

gravity of this case requires a court order that commands a  12 

 13 

government official or entity to perform an act it is legally required to  14 

 15 

perform as part of its official duties, or refrain from performing an act  16 

 17 

the law forbids.   18 

 19 

 20 

5. Plaintiff hereby respectfully requests the court to order Defendants  21 

 22 

to immediately stop deconstruction and transfer all remaining control  23 

 24 

and funds to Salmon Protection Device non-profit for remediation. 25 

 26 

Salmonprotectiondevice.com retains engineers and scientists who  27 

 28 

know how to mitigate the contaminated silt, dredge behind the dam,  29 

 30 

and install fish ladders if needed on Pomeroy Dam.  31 

  32 

 33 

6. Plaintiff hereby respectfully requests the court to provide relief with   34 

 35 

and take judicial notice of the lethal environmental consequences  36 

 37 
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D23’s actions, which must cease immediately. Rule Salmon  1 

 2 

Protection Device remediation team to the task of project mitigation  3 

 4 

immediately, to avoid more lethal environmental consequences of  5 

 6 

D23’s gross negligence.   7 

 8 

7. Plaintiff again requests a writ of mandamus and a Summary  9 

 10 

Judgment in Plaintiff’s favor because Defendants are clearly biased  11 

 12 

against Federal Environmental law, not doing what they are legally  13 

 14 

required to do.  15 

 16 

8. Plaintiff respectfully requests the federal court to provide any cost up  17 

 18 

to $1 million to Plaintiff’s mitigation team as the court sees fit. 19 

 20 

 21 

 22 

 23 

Service 24 

 25 

Fed. R. Civ. P. 4(e)”. says (e)(1) “following state law for serving  26 

 27 

a summons in an action brought in courts of general jurisdiction in the state  28 

 29 

where the district court is located or where service is made; However, by  30 

 31 

Oregon law email service is allowed. UTCR 8 21.10 (2) explains a  32 

 33 

document may be a pleading or many other documents.  34 

 35 

Rule 4M states plaintiffs can serve the summons up to 90 days’ after 36 
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 1 

the complaint is filed. 2 

 3 

 4 

 5 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE  6 

I hereby certify that on August 22nd, 2024, a true and correct copy of the 7 

above document was electronically filed with the Clerk of the Court using 8 

CM/ECF. A copy of the document will be served upon interested parties via 9 

the Notices of Electronic Filing that are generated by CM/ECF. Additionally, 10 

a courtesy copy is being provided as follows:  11 

 12 

Attorney for Legal Counsel for D23 defendants 13 

 14 

Kaitlin Lovell  15 

 16 

Attorney-Advisor  17 

 18 

213 SW Ash St., Suite 208   19 

 20 

Portland, OR 97204  21 

 22 

213 SW Ash St., Suite 208   23 

 24 

Portland, OR 97204  25 

 26 

(503) 295-4039  27 

 28 

info@waterwatch.org  29 

 30 

  31 

 32 

Janette Brimmer  33 

 34 

jbrimmer@earthjustice.org  35 

 36 

Molly Tack-Hooper  37 

 38 

mtackhooper@earthjustice.org  39 
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 1 

mitt@dietrichconst.com  2 

 3 

info@riverdesigngroup.com  4 

 5 

 6 

 7 

___ Via hand delivery  8 

___ Via U.S. Mail, 1st Class,  9 

Postage Prepaid  10 

___ Via Overnight Delivery  11 

___ Via Facsimile  12 

XX Via Email  13 

XX Via CM/ECF notification  14 

to the extent registered DATED: August 22nd, 2024.    15 

By: David White  16 

 17 

 18 
David C. White Pro Se. August 22nd, 2024 19 

 20 

 21 

EXHIBITS 22 

 23 

Exhibit 1 will be sworn affidavits of local residents who were bullied by  24 

 25 

defendants. To keep Defendants from committing further harassment (8)  26 

29 CFR § 1606.8 (1)), the Sworn affidavits of local residents will be  27 

 28 

exhibits at an emergency hearing. 29 

 30 

Exhibit 2 is D23 illegal Joint Application 31 

 32 
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https://salmonprotectiondevice.com/joint_application_filed_with_state_lands.pdf 1 

 2 

Exhibit 3 is D23 illegal agreement with the residence not signed by an  3 

 4 

officer of D23. 5 

 6 

 7 
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 1 



36 
 

 1 

 2 
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 1 
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 1 
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 1 
Exhibit 4 2 
 3 
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 1 

Atmospheric Carbon Dioxide residence time  2 

 3 

In a 2003 IPCC report, The Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change  4 

 5 

gave a range of 5 years to 200 years for residence time, which can be a  6 

 7 

range of time. However, most Chemical Engineers use average  8 

 9 

residence time. That is what we are interested in. We need to know on  10 

 11 

average how long it takes a molecule to be consumed by photosynthesis,  12 

 13 

Or diffused to the exosphere. This time is at least 150 years. The full  14 

 15 

manuscript can be accessed at: 16 

 17 

 https://agupubs.onlinelibrary.wiley.com/doi/full/10.1002/2017JD028121  18 

 19 

This is more than 160 PhD in 19 published manuscripts summarized in  20 

 21 

one published manuscript. 22 

Residence Time (Years) Author Year 

700 Allen 2009 

610 Zickfeld 2013 

500 Matthews 2008 

300 Plattner 2008 

270 Cao 2010 

230 Zickfeld 2012 

220 Solomon 2012 

220 Knutti 2012 

210 Gillett 2011 

180 Frolicher 2010 

150 Hare 2006 

 23 
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Even at a residence time of 100 years, atmospheric CO2 never lowers  1 

 2 

due to reducing emissions. Constraints for this chart. 45% reduction in  3 

 4 

fossil fuel CO2 emissions by 2030 55% reduction in fossil fuel CO2  5 

 6 

emissions by 2130 due to depletion of those fuels. 2030 45% reduction in  7 

the rate of rise of Atmospheric CO2. 8 

 9 

2130 45% reduction in CO2 concentration 10 

 11 

2230 55% reduction in CO2 concentration and rate. 12 

 13 

Another way to look at residence time is a signature from past events,  14 

 15 

which lowered CO2 emissions. As an example, oil embargo in the  16 

 17 

1970’s, multiple recessions and the big worldwide recession in 2009. The 18 

\ 19 

COVID-19 pandemic. These are examples of lowered worldwide  20 

 21 

emissions. Below is the current graph of Mauna Loa CO2. You can  22 

 23 

clearly see no signature from these events. 24 

 25 
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